ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 13, 2009
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Miifioz, Vice Chair
Representative Bryce Edgnon

Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Chris Tuck
COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW(S) : DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT
(EED) SPECI AL EDUCATI ON, | NTENSI VE NEEDS PROGRAMS

- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 69

"An Act establishing in the Departnment of Education and Early
Devel opnent a voluntary parent education hone visiting program
for pre-elenentary aged children; and establishing a rating
system for early chil dhood education.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 69

SHORT TI TLE: EARLY CHI LDHOCD ED: RATI NG & HOMVE VI SI TS
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) TUCK, PETERSEN, KAWASAKI, GARA

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09
01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) EDC, FIN

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -1- February 13, 2009



02/ 11/ 09 (H) EDC AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 11/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d
02/ 11/ 09 (H) M NUTE( EDC)

W TNESS REG STER

EDDY JEANS, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the overview by the
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment (EED).

CYNDY CURRAN, Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the overview by the
Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED).

NI CKI SHELTON

Nat i onal Trai ner

Parents and Teachers Program ( PAT)

Hoonah, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 69, and provided
a description of the program

JANE SULLI VAN, Educat or

Parents as Teachers Program ( PAT)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 69.

MELI SSA Pl CKLE

St at e Coor di nat or

Parents as Teachers Program ( PAT)

Rural Al aska Conmmunity Action Program Inc. (RurAL CAP)
Eagl e River, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 69.

FAY GALLAGHER

Hoonah, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 69.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02:32 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 2- February 13, 2009



CHAI R PAUL SEATON cal l ed the House Education Standing Conmmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:02 a.m Represent ati ves Seaton, Edgnon,
Gardner, Buch, and Keller were present at the call to order.
Representatives Mifioz and WIlson arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

8:03:10 AM

OVERVI EWNS) : DEPARTMENT COF EDUCATION AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT
(EED) SPECI AL EDUCATI ON, | NTENSI VE NEEDS PROGRANS

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business would be
Overviews by the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
(EED) Special Education, |Intensive Needs Prograns.

8:03: 56 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED), introduced
t he supervisor of the Special Education D vision, Cyndy Curran,
who will provide a brief overview of the special education team

8:04:57 AM

CYNDY  CURRAN, Director, Teaching and Learning  Support,
Department of Education and Early Devel opment (EED), stated that
t he Special Education Division enploys a staff of 11 who operate
under various state and federal statutes and regulations
regardi ng education of students with learning disabilities and
speci al needs. These enployees nmaintain conpliance with state
and federal |aws governing students with disabilities through
techni cal assistance to school districts, distribution of grant
funding, developnent of pre-service and in-service training

progr ans, conpl ai nt i nvestigation, medi ati on, due process
heari ngs, and conpliance reviews. She related that the Special
Education Unit nonitors districts on a five-year cycle for
conpliance with federal and state regul ations. The wunit is

responsi ble for ensuring that children receive early screening
and intervention for health and devel opnental | earning needs.

8:07:47 AM

V. CURRAN indicated that the speci al education team
coll aborates with other agencies, such as Departnment of Health
and Social Services (DHSS) to provide services and support for
general, oral, mental and behavioral health, early intervention
services, Head Start, and daycare services. The funding also

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 3- February 13, 2009



supports the Autism Resource Center, secondary transition
services, and the vocational rehabilitation activities. Wthin
the University of Alaska Statew de System the Al aska Teacher
Pl acement Center has worked on a special education professional
devel opnent grant whose goal is to increase the nunber of
special education teachers and to nentor special education
teachers in their first two years in the state.

8:08: 14 AM

CHAIR SEATON inquired as to whether nentoring for special
education teachers is different than other teacher nentor
progr ans.

M5. CURRAN answered that within the framework of the statew de
mentor project, the special education devel opnent grant pays for
special education nentors in Alaska to assist new teachers
understand the requirenments in Al aska. In further response to
Chair Seaton, M. Curran answered that the Special Education
Federal Grant has one nore year prior to expiration. She said
that she is not sure if the grant will continue to be avail abl e.

8:09:45 AM

CHAIR SEATON requested an analysis of how inportant the
nmentori ng program has been for teacher training and whether the
grant is avail able.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for clarification on whether the
pre-service are kindergarten prograns.

M5. CURRAN answered that the pre-service conponent is designed
to prepare special education teachers for Alaska, such as the
Early Chil dhood Special Education program that operates at the
University of Al aska Anchorage, and the University of Al aska
Sout heast (UAS) has a special education teacher preparation
program for teachers. She explained the UAS program is an
endorsenment program  She nentioned that the university does not
offer a 4-year programthat |eads to special education.

8:11: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to the responsibility for
conplaint investigations. She reported on comments that she has
received from parents in her district who are unhappy about the
services their children receive. She recalled that Anchorage
School District superintendent Carol Coneau reported that very

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 4- February 13, 2009



few parents’ conplaints are burdensone. She inquired as to
whet her a nmechanismis in place to determine the actual cost of
conplaints that are ongoing and result in hearings and
nmedi ati on.

8:12: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that people should have a way to
make their views known and ask for assistance |egislation exists
for

8:13: 00 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to Representative Gardner, explained that
if parents are dissatisfied with the conplaint process agencies
are available for parents, such as the D sability Law Center.
He surm sed that the superintendent may be referring to the cost
to go through the process. However, it’s the school district’s
responsibility to provide the educational services. He opi ned
that sonme parents may claim that their child is entitled to
additional services that the district nay view as unreasonabl e.

8:13: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER opi ned that sonetines the parent may be
right that the child is not receiving the services he/she needs.

MR.  JEANS agreed. He stated that in those instances an
adm nistrative law judge wll then issue an order and the
district would need to conply.

8:14:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that regarding the Autism
Resource Center, the handout Ilists that about a tenth of the
Specific Learning Disabilities (LD) fall into the category of
autism yet a specific resource center is provided. She
recalled the governor has focused attention on autism
di agnosti cs. She questioned how this conpares to the fetal
al cohol progranms since the incidence of fetal alcohol syndrone
(FASD) is so high in Al aska.

MR. JEANS responded that the Learning Disability (LD) category
includes many services including attention deficit disorders
(ADD). He said that the level of services sone students receive
are mnimal, but the district nust identify the child wth

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 5- February 13, 2009



disabilities in order to receive services. He said that the
services are quite a bit different for the children identified
as autistic.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER related her understanding that the
autistic children represent a nore intense need.

MR. JEANS agr eed.

8:16: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER referred to early screening, and recalled
that pediatricians can meke referrals. She further recalled
that HB 69 wll help indentify special needs children. She

inquired as to whether specific outreach exists. Thus, how does
the school district reach children in need of early chil dhood
services, in instances in which a parent is not know edgeable
enough to know that something m ght be wong.

M5. CURRAN answered that every school district has people who
are tasked to identify children whose parents may not be aware

of their <child s needs. She nentioned that nmany schoo
districts hold parent neetings and advertise “Child Find”
services for Anchorage and the WMatanuska-Susitna area. She

recapped that school districts perform the outreach, which is
done to assist parents.

8:17:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON inquired as to whether Alaska is so
different from other states since federal laws apply. She
inquired as to the necessity to offer special education teacher
training for new teachers arriving in Al aska.

M5. CURRAN explained that many of the teachers being nentored
are first and second year teachers who have not honed their
skills with respect to special education.

8:18: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for specifics of how the EED
col l aborates wth other agencies, such as DHSS. He asked
whet her the departnment works with other agencies and
specifically how that happens.

M5. CURRAN related that program nmanagers from EED and DHSS wor k
on areas that are specific to the special education and health

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 6- February 13, 2009



and early intervention services. She related that the
col | aboration could be provided via a task force, panel, or
other group to find solutions to issues. She offered to provide
t he specific nane of the panel that regularly neets.

8:20: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER related his understanding that the
departnment allows the school districts to nonitor and provide
gquality measures and innovative strategies. He asked if the
departnment generally addresses innovati on.

M5. CURRAN responded that all of the departnment personnel
responsible for pr ogr ans attend professional devel opnent
opportunities for thenmselves to learn the variety of things
going on throughout the U. S. She related that they bring back
know edge to Al aska. She related two exanpl es such as response
to intervention, which the State of Al aska (SOA) refers to
“response to instruction” and “positive behavioral supports”.
She opined the goal is to learn innovative techniques other
states have been wusing to assist students wth appropriate
achi evenent | evels.

MR. JEANS commented that he has attenpted to point out to the
finance subcommttee for a nunber of years that the Teaching And
Learning Support Division of the state, with a staff of 70
enpl oyees is funded through the federal governnent. Their job
is to ensure that the school districts are conplying with the
federal grants they receive. He highlighted that when the
conmttee asks if the EED has a section or division of
i nnovation, the answer is no. He opined that this staff
i npl enent federal laws and if the legislature wants to fund a
division to address innovation, state funding would need to be
provi ded. He indicated that nost of special education or
children with disabilities is dictated by federal mandates.

8:24:10 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked for clarification for the conmttee on the
definition of special education and the specific qualifications
needed to receive special education, how the Individualized
Education Plans (IEP) are performed, and any other paraneters
for this category, prior to continuing since the commttee wll
be di scussing intensive needs.

M5. CURRAN answered from her perspective as a forner teacher.
She related her experience that when a child is not achieving at

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -7- February 13, 2009



his/her age level, the teacher wll recognize there my be a

reason the child is not performng well, such as a behavior, a
physi cal disability or other reason. At that time, a teacher
would intervene to try to help a student. She related that the
teacher would consult wth a special education teacher to
identify any issues. If the process does not help, the teacher
would then identify the child, including providing data on
actions taken, and the child s response. She related that an
| EP team consisting of the principal, the teacher, the specia

education teacher, the school psychologist will be consulted, to
review the issues the child is having. From there, the team

deci des whether the child would receive an evaluation by a
school psychol ogi st or psychonetri st.

8:27:09 AM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON inquired as to when the parent is
cont act ed.

M5. CURRAN answered that the teacher would hold conversations
with the parent throughout the process, fromthe tinme that the
teacher realizes the child is having difficulty. The team wl|
recommend any nunber of services, such as a math tutor, physi cal
t herapy, or other needs. She acknow edged that the parent is at
the I EP neeting. She enphasized that if an evaluation is done,
the IEP team neets to determne what types of services the
student would need ranging from math tutoring, to physical or
speech therapy. She indicated the Independent Education Plans
(IEPs) are reviewed periodically to identify progress once
services are provided.

8:29:17 AM

CHAIR SEATON related his wunderstanding that the classroom
teacher is often the person who identifies the underperformng
student, the parent is infornmed, and neasures are taken to help
the child. He inquired as to the boundary so that the services
can be accessed for special education.

M5. CURRAN answered that a parent nay approach a teacher to
express concern. She related that the teacher would work wth
the parent, for exanple when a child has a speech inpedi nent.
She highlighted that if a classroom teacher cannot intervene in
a meaningful way, at the parent’s request an |IEP team would be
formed for an evaluation by the speech pathologist and the
appropriate services could be provided.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 8- February 13, 2009



8:31:16 AM

CHAIR SEATON clarified that the request mght cone from the
parent or teacher identifying a need.

MS. CURRAN agr eed.

MR. JEANS reiterated that the teacher or parent can request an

eval uation through the principal. The evaluation can then be
made to determine if the student is qualified to receive
servi ces. At the time the eligibility determnation is nmade,

t he team woul d be convened.
8:32:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ asked if a parent resists intervention,
whet her the district continues to attenpt to establish services
and forman | EP

M5. CURRAN said she was not certain and offered to provide that
information to the commttee. She surmsed that it is the
parents’ right to decide if they do not want services provided.

8:32:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ inquired as to whether it is easy to renove
an IEP in the event the child progresses and no |onger needs
services or if it is difficult to renove the child from the
system

M5. CURRAN expl ained that the purpose of the IEP is to help the
student achieve at appropriate |evels. She offered that sone
children remain in special education while others receive
services, the IEP team neets to review the child s progress, and
if the services are no |longer needed, the child exits the
system

8:33: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON requested the estinated percentage of the
nunber of parents that refuse the |EP service. He related his
own parental experience with |IEP and surmsed only a snall
per cent age of parents woul d decline services.

MR. JEANS related his understanding that information is not

currently collected by the EED so the information nmay not be
readily avail able. He surmsed that very few parents would

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 9- February 13, 2009



decline specialized instruction. Thus, he said he thought the
i ncidence of parents refusing services would be mninal. If a
child has trouble with reading due to a disability, the teacher
m ght recomrend renoving the child from class for individual
assi st ance. If a parent did not want their child renoved from
the class, the teacher m ght nove the student to a quiet area to
read instead.

8:36: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER recalled prior testinmony before the
conmmittee, and shared that he has never experienced a parent
refusi ng servi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER offered that some parents may decline if
the child were labeled in order to receive services. She
inquired as to whether a child has to be diagnosed as |earning
disabled in order to obtain an |IEP

M5. CURRAN opined that the |abel is not the inportant aspect of
the process, but identifying what service is needed in order to
help a child succeed. She explained that the |abel doesn’t
follow a child, but rather the child is identified as needing
additional help with reading, or the child needs physical or
speech therapy and obtains it. She reiterated that teachers
don’t refer to the child as “learning disabled” but identify the
child needs extra hel p.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER speaking from personal experience
expl ained that an | EP does not need a “label”. She offered that
she had a child with a speech problem for six years, but she did
not think the child was | abel ed as | earni ng di sabl ed.

8:38:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON rel at ed her understandi ng that sone
parents whose children are diagnosed with Attention Deficit
Hyperactivity Di sorder (ADHD) may choose not to nedicate
their child.

CHAI R SEATON offered his belief that would be a discussion that
woul d take place during the teamneeting to create an | EP

MR. JEANS, speaking from his personal experience related that
his daughter was diagnosed ADHD by their physician. He
expl ai ned that they agreed to nedication for their daughter, but
that if they elected not to provide nedication, that she was

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -10- February 13, 2009



still eligible for special education services. Thus, the
medi ci ne does not trigger whether the child is eligible for
speci al education services, rather it is the disability.

8:41: 47 AM

M5. CURRAN offered that the special education unit also assists
and supports the alternate assessnent, which addresses itens
such as working with honme school initiatives, correspondence
students, and honeless students. She related that federal
funding is available for children ages 3-5. She stated the DHSS
provides a guidance docurment called the Special Education
Handbook to assi st parents which includes the federal
regul ations, exanples of IEP's, and other information. She
opi ned t he handbook is updated annually and is easy to use.

8:44: 04 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked what percentage of students in the K-12
system has | EPs.

MR. JEANS answered that approximately 17,760 students of 128, 000
are identified as special education students attending schools
st at ew de.

8:45:12 AM

M5. CURRAN, in response to Representative Miioz, stated that the
DHSS works with the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation on
prograns.

8:45:22 AM

REPRESENTATIVE MUNOZz asked if that is for rehabilitative
training and not for vocational technical education.

M5. CURRAN agr eed.

CHAI R SEATON asked for exanples of vocational rehabilitation
training of for grades K -12.

M5. CURRAN offered to provide nore information. She rel ated her
understanding that vocational rehabilitation deals wth the
secondary transition and students needing specialized training
for physical inpairnents.

8:46: 22 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -11- February 13, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH rel ated that vocational education is under
the block grant aspect, which is different than vocational
rehabilitation.

MR. JEANS agreed that the vocational education for grades K — 12
is included in the 20 percent block grant, while the vocationa
rehabilitation that Ms. Curran referred to is those transitional
services that a student leaving the K — 12 system needs to
transition into adulthood to provide for hinself/herself.

8:47:41 AM

CHAI R SEATON advised Ms. Curran that provides him with enough
information that the services provide students who have specia
needs to transition out of school so that the person can
function i ndependently.

8:48: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to what the national average
is for special education children.

M5. CURRAN offered to provide the information to the conmttee.
8:48: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if Alaska’'s rate would be higher
due to fetal alcohol syndrone (FAS) and ot her societal issues.

M5. CURRAN said she did not know.
8:49: 49 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to Representative WIson, explained that
the 20 percent block funding is |abeled “special needs” to
assi st school districts to provi de speci al educat i on,
vocational /technical, and bilingual/bicultural needs. Once a
school district has identified a child as needing special
education, it nust provide the services regardless of the cost.
These funds are to assist school districts to neet the needs,
but they can use other funds as well such as their general

f unds. He highlighted that the school districts are not
expected to cover all its programs with 20 percent block
f undi ng. He stated that the funding is a way to allocate
resour ces. The funding is discretionary and it is up to the

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -12- February 13, 2009



school board to figure out how to provide services with the
total “pot of noney” it receives.

8:51: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON related her understanding that the state
does not make a determnation that a particular school has
greater needs for technical training. She opined that every
school receives the sane anmount in the sane category.

MR. JEANS agreed that the 20 percent block funding is what
schools receive, but the amount is adjusted for other factors
such as cost differential. He related the 20 percent is the
mechani smin the funding fornula.

8:52:33 AM

CHAI R SEATON opined if this was not allocated as a 20 percent
bl ock grant, the school districts would still be required to
provi de special education and other services. He opined that

the district chooses how to establish and admnister the
servi ces.

8:53:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH related his understanding that vocational
education is not nmentioned in any other conponent.

MR. JEANS agr eed.
8:54:26 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to Representative Keller, explained that
charter schools are different. He explained that if there are
over 150 students, the statute is very clear that at a mninmm
t he base anount is provided.

8:55:21 AM

MR. JEANS explained that “Intensive Needs” is a State of Al aska
(SOA) term and is not found in the federal title. He indicated
that the SOA recognizes that sone children require a high cost
to serve. The funding fornula changed for an intensive needs
student from 5 tines the base allocation to 9 tines this year,
and it wll increase by 11 tines. The follow ng vyear the
funding fornmula for an intensive needs student will be 13 tines
the base allocation. He related that the funding for an

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -13- February 13, 2009



i ntensive needs child from approxi mately $24,000 at the 5 tines
the base allocation is alnmost $75,000 per child by the tinme it
is fully inplenmented, which he offered is a substantia
i ncrease. Thus, school districts nust validate any clains for
i ntensi ve needs students.

MR. JEANS stated that ten years ago the student count in this

category was 1,400 statew de. That nunber has increased to
approximately 2,000 this year, while the overall state
popul ation has renained about the sanme, he offered. He

hi ghlighted that due to disputes about eligibility of intensive
needs students, the departnment to conduct a training session to
assist the schools to determine eligibility for intensive needs
students. He directed attention to the commttee handout titled
"Training Materials for Determining Eligibility of Intensive
Needs Students,"™ published Septenber 22, 2008. He expl ai ned
t hat the guide <contains the regulations, and provides
information on how the departnent interprets the regulations,
and how it relates to the |EP. He reiterated that the EED has
provided a step-by-step process for determning eligibility for
i ntensi ve needs and how to docunent that need.

8:59:38 AM

MR. JEANS pointed out that the EED has requested $150,000 to
provide for auditors for intensive needs funding, to exam ne
every claimto ensure the clains are valid.

9:00: 17 AM

MR. JEANS referred to a handout titled "Alaska' s Public School
Speci al Needs Funding Prepared 2/7/09," and explained how the
funds are distributed, allowng for the discretionary use by the
districts. He related that conbining special needs, the 20
percent block, and intensive needs, that the funding increases
from $202 million in FY 06 to $304 million in FY 10. He said he
thinks it is inportant to recognize that when the funding is
distributed in the foundation formula program that it is “one
pot”. He related that allocations exist within the system but
“at the end of the day, it’'s one pot of noney; the district
determ nes how to spend that noney.”

9:01: 47 AM
MR. JEANS, in response to Representative WIson, explained that

the federal sheet does not use the term “intensive needs” and
uses a definition for children with disabilities. In further

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -14- February 13, 2009



response to Representative WIson, M. Jeans explained that the
i ntensive needs students are included in the 17,600 students.
He indicated that “intensive needs” refers to the level of
service, how nuch additional service these students require
beyond the services provided for a “special education” student.

9:03: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON sonme of the intensive needs students have
a person acconpanying them to class, and asked if that were a
qgqual i fying characteristic.

MR. JEANS agreed that was one of the identifying criteria,
however that has been | oosened sonewhat. He stated that it is
the EED's intent to identify intensive needs students as those
who require 1:1 assistance throughout the entire day, not |ust
during the school day.

9:03: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH directed attention to the budget figures on
page 2 prepared on 2/7/09 and asked for clarification whether
the total is included in the budget.

MR. JEANS clarified that the FY 10 appropriation has already

been all ocat ed. The appropriation the EED is requesting this
session will fund FY 11

9: 04: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if other options are available to
care for “intensive needs” students, for exanple through the
Department of Health and Social Services. He offered that

“iI ntensi ve needs” students can be difficult in a classroom

MR. JEANS related that federal law requires that disabled
children have a right to attend public school s.

9: 06: 07 AM

MR. JEANS, in response to Representative WIson clarified that
for FY 10 funding is 11 tines the base allocation and for FY 11

it will be 13 tines the base allocation for “intensive needs”
students.
9:06: 39 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 15- February 13, 2009



MR. JEANS referred to the handout titled "VII," which provides
information previously requested by the commttee and details

the nunber of “intensive needs” students who have noved in and
out of districts across the state, which ranges from 20 to 30
students. He pointed out the mnimal flux that occurs.

Typically a famly receiving services establishes itself in a
comunity and remains in the comunity.

9: 08: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked whether the cost to provide services
to “intensive needs” students is exorbitant for a comunity
wi t hout avail abl e servi ces.

MR. JEANS stated his belief that every district has adequate
funding to provide for the needs of an “intensive needs” student
during the year.

9: 09: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON recalled a presentation by the Mental
Heal th Trust Authority. He directed attention to the Enotiona
Di sturbance (ED) category and asked if there are other
categories that tie trauma to the overall nunbers of students.

MR. JEANS answered that the majority of the students com ng back
in the “Bring The Kids Hone” program fall under the ED category.
He stressed that it is inportant to understand that sone of
these students may not actually qualify for “intensive needs”
fundi ng under the category as defined by the EED

9:12: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER related her wunderstanding that many
children are in treatnent program out-of-state to deal wth
eating disorders. She opined that they when they return hone,
they nmay need “wap around services” but they nmay also be good
st udent s.

MR. JEANS agr eed.

9:12:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired how a determnation is made for
“i ntensi ve needs” students.

9:13: 09 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 16- February 13, 2009



MR. JEANS responded that all of the determinations are nade with
the IEP team He pointed out that the training guide identifies
specific services that a child receives and when a certain
threshold is attained, the student is considered an “intensive
needs” candi date. He related that the guide that was devel oped
is intended to provide guidance, for exanple, one of the
categories is that the «child requires multiple services
including related services, which includes exanples, so the
speci al educational director knows where the information should
be included in the IEP. Thus, the docunentation for “intensive
needs” students is clear.

9:14:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there is a nechanism to check on
the accountability of the program

MR. JEANS rel ated that the special education team conducts field
reviews, holds parent conferences to discuss services, and
determine that the child is receiving appropriate services as
per the | EP

CHAI R SEATON recalled that the EED has requested an $150, 000
increnent in the budget to support auditors for “intensive
needs” students.

MR. JEANS clarified that wth existing staff, reviews are
conpleted on all of the new cl aims. The budget increment of
$150, 000 woul d revi ew 100 percent of “intensive needs” students.
9:20: 59 AM

HB 69- EARLY CHI LDHOCD ED:. RATI NG & HOMVE VI SI TS

CHAI R SEATON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 69, "An Act establishing in the Departnent of
Education and Early Developnent a voluntary parent education
home visiting program for pre-elenmentary aged children; and
establishing a rating systemfor early chil dhood education."”

9:21:47 AM
CHAI R SEATON remnded the conmttee that public testinony is

still open on HB 69, and clarified the itens in the packet that
wer e added since the last hearing on the bill.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -17- February 13, 2009



9:23: 03 AM

CHAI R SEATON advised that a voluntary program is in place in
certain areas of the state.

9:23: 56 AM

NI CKI  SHELTON, National Trainer, Parents and Teachers Program
(PAT), stated her support for HB 69, and offered a brief
bi ography of her credentials as a long tinme teacher in Hoonah,
as a Parents as Teachers trainer and as a national trainer for

the program based in St. Loui s, M ssouri . The first
responsibility is to train and certify those who wll deliver
this service. The core of the program is the personal visit.

In Hoonah, 70 percent requested that the visit occurs in the
honme, and 30 percent prefer another |ocation, such as the |ocal
Head Start center or in another person’s hone. The conponents
of the personal visit are included in the conmttee packet, she

st at ed. Before the PAT providers are certified they nust
denonstrate ability to present the materials. The famly wll
decide if other caregivers will also attend the personal visit.

M5. SHELTON said that visits differ with each famly. Progress
is tracked on an individual basis. She provided exanples of how
interactions occur such as the observation of how a child is
responding to a task previously suggested and the child s

devel opnent . She provided anecdotes of actual activities that
have occurred, and stressed the inportance of wusing material
that is easily found in the home or comunity. She expl ai ned

that she brings a parent/child activity that is geared to the
child s interest.

9:31:17 AM

M5. SHELTON explained the parent’s role is to nodel for the
child, and the PAT provides nodels for the parent. She stressed
that the PAT provides coaching for the parents and the
facilitator is not the child s teacher.

M5. SHELTON also explained another conmponent is Iliteracy
activity and appropriate reading is nodel ed. She described sone
types of age appropriate reading experiences. She expl ai ned

that she provides activities for the famlies to perform that
reinforces the child s devel opnent that has been discussed and
t hat rei nforces t hat parents are assum ng | earni ng
responsibilities for their children.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 18- February 13, 2009



9:33:27 AM

IVS. SHELTON explained that parent educators nust becone

certified in the program This mintains a standard for
mat eri al adm ni stration/di ssem nati on. She stressed the
i nportance of [|ocal training. She related that materials used

shoul d be germane for the area to neet cultural and | ocal needs.

M5. SHELTON offered that the program undergoes a yearly
certification renewal. The website provides PAT training
opportunities and other information for becomng involved in the
program

9:37: 06 AM

CHAIR SEATON inquired as to the level of participation in
Hoonah, if the program is open to all, or if there are
[imtations in the nunber of clients served.

MS. SHELTON answered that she does not have specific statistics
but that participation is high. She offered to provide
statistics to the conmttee. She related that after 14 years of
operation, the program offers weekly famly nights, wth
attendance ranging from 40-65 people in a town of approximtely
800 residents.

9:38:24 AM

CHAIR SEATON inquired as to whether the program is open to
everyone.

M5. SHELTON stated the only requirenent is the age of a child.
She related that at one tinme the program had waiting lists, but
the program has received enough grant noney to train parent
educators, which has alleviated the backlog. She nentioned that
the funding is not stable.

9:39:22 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if she works with the school district.

M5. SHELTON answered that the school district is the sponsoring
program al though she recalled previously sone agencies provided
addi ti onal fundi ng. In response to Chair Seaton, M. Shelton

answered that the program is only offered through the school
district.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -19- February 13, 2009



9:40: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER recalled the PAT has a national nodel and
inquired as to whether a person applied for a grant, or if a
maj or foundation identified communities that would receive these
servi ces.

M5. SHELTON explained that the program was discovered by a

school superintendent who proposed the program She related
that several years later Title | funds were used to initiate the
pr ogr am Since then the program sponsors have included the

Hoonah Heritage, Central Council, Tlingit & Haida Indian Tribes
of Alaska, and Ward Cove Packing Conpany. She stated that
funding has also cone from Tribal Colleges Education Equity
Grant funding and Al askan Children’s Trust.

9:42: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ asked if she has tracked the success of the
students as they go through the high school.

M5. SHELTON answered that statistics were not gathered. She
rel ated anecdotal statistics such as the first group of thirteen
famlies have provided informal reports. The vast mpjority of
parents have commented on how hel pful the PAT program has been
for their children.

9:44:57 AM
REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked if she supports HB 69.

M5. SHELTON offered her support for HB 69. She enphasized that
funding is volatile and sone conmmunities cannot sustain services
wi t hout state funding.

9:45: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON referred to the definition of famly in HB
69, and recalled her reference to parents. He inquired as to
whet her the terns are interchangeabl e.

M5. SHELTON explained that visits are done with various famly
configurations, ranging from foster parents, gr andpar ent s,
aunts, or the child s guardian. Thus, famly is a nore
appropriate termrather than parents.

9:48: 05 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 20- February 13, 2009



M5. SHELTON, in response to Representative Buch, explained that
the PAT program has grown significantly. She related that the
PAT holds teleconferences wth providers. She related a
scenario in which a woman provides training in Yupik. She
opined that the volunteers are a cadre of unsung heroes who are
passi onate about their work with famlies.

9:49: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked what advancenents have occurred in
continui ng education regardi ng the parent educators.

M5. SHELTON offered that many of the parent educators have their
Chil d Devel opnment Associate, which is a credential. Next, the
person would take distance delivery courses to earn their
Associ ates of Arts degree (AA) or Bachelor of Arts (BA) in Early
Chi | dhood Educati on. She stated that she did not have specific
statistics to provide.

9:51: 35 AM

JANE SULLI VAN, Educator, Parents as Teachers (PAT), offered that
she has a degree in Early Childhood Education, has homeschool ed
her five children, and has been a parent educator in Hoonah, as
wel | as having experience working for Head Start. She stated
that she decided to hone school her children in order to provide
the best educational opportunities for them to address their
individual Ilearning styles, and their interests in specific
subj ect s. She said that honmeschooling her children required a
| ot of discipline and organizational skills. She said she used
school resources, ranging from auto shop classes, attending
witing workshops, science fairs, and using the school |ibrary,
as well as curriculummteri al s.

M5. SULLIVAN participated in annual state and federal testing
for her children to verify that they were at or above their
grade |evels. She explained that when she began working for
Parents as Teachers, she realized it was an extension of that
same dynamic. Educating parents about child devel opnent and how
to respond and provide resources for parents are what parent
educat ors provide. She related that they are facilitators that
hel p parents understand the inpact they have on their children

She stated that the parents she worked with in Hoonah becane
excited about the positive influences they had on their
children' s |ives.

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -21- February 13, 2009



9:54: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER related her understanding that sone
opposition is comng from hone school parents who seem to be
concerned wth government intrusion. It may be helpful to
provide themwith letters of support from those experienced with
the program do not find it intrusive. She asked for a summary
of Ms. Sullivan’s experience.

M5. SULLI VAN agreed to provide a sumary of her testinony to the
conmittee.

9:56: 44 AM

MELI SSA PI CKLE, State Coordinator, Parents as Teachers (PAT),
Rural Al aska Community Action Program Inc. (RurAL CAP), stated
support for HB 69, and outlined her background in early
chi | dhood education along with her credentials. She said that
several of these prograns have closed due to lack of funding
Every year the nunmber of prograns changes because of the funding
fluctuations.

9:59:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked on a scale of 1 to 10 how she would
rate the program

MS. PICKLE stated that she would rate the programas a 9 or a 10
on a scale of 1 to 10. She offered her belief that early
chil dhood attention is critical and is a known fact. Many
research prograns are now including parental visits as a
fundament al need. This program serves young children who woul d
ot herwi se have limted options.

10: 01: 48 AM

FAY GALLAGHER shared her experience as a grand parent of a 4-
year old, and a previous school district enployee who was
working at the Hoonah School in 1995 when the program began.
Despite her skepticism of the benefits of teaching a snal
child, she has since gained an understanding of the inportance.
She praised the materials and the support that the program
provi des. The program definitely inproves the quality of life
for those involved, and she opined that the PAT programis for
ever ybody. She opined that having the program in Juneau woul d
al so be beneficial.

10: 07: 23 AM

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE -22- February 13, 2009



CHAIR SEATON stated that HB 69 would be held, and public
testi nony woul d remai n open.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee the House
Education Standing Conmttee was adjourned at 10:07 a.m

HOUSE EDC COWM TTEE - 23- February 13, 2009



